Name of Company

Companies House receipt date barcode

Company number

The Insolvency Act 1986

Administrator's progress report

Pursuant to Rule 2.38 of the Insolvency (Scotland) Rules 1986

	aig Street Coatbri	dge Limited	SC286972			
(a) Insert full name(s) and address(es) of administrator(s)	I / We (a) Sim c/o Moorfiek	on Thomas and Arr ds, 88 Wood Street	on Kenda , London,	II - Joint Administrator EC2V 7QF	<u>'S</u> 	
	administrator(s)	of the above company att	ach a progres	s report for the period		
		from		to		
(b) Insert dates		ugust 2017		^{b)} 29 March 2018		
	Signed Joint /	Administrator(s)				
	Dated 9 May	2018				
Contact De	etails:					
		Ben Luxford				
You do not have to give any contact information in the box opposite but if you do, it will help Companies House to contact you if there is a query on the form.		Moorfields, 88 Wood Street, London, EC2V 7QF				
The contact information that y to searchers of the public recor				Tel 0207 186 11	163	
		DX Number		DX Exchange		

THURSDAY

When you have completed and signed this form please send it to the Registrar of Companies at:

Companies House, 4th Floor, Edinburgh Quay 2, 139 Fountainbridge, Edinburgh, EH3 9FF DX 235 Edinburgh / LP 4 Edinburgh-2

575NA674

SCT 10/05/2018 COMPANIES HOUSE

#5

Palacecraig Street Coatbridge Limited – in Administration

Joint Administrators' Third Progress Report in accordance with Rule 2.38 of the Insolvency (Scotland) Rules 1986

4 May 2018

Contents

Section

1	Background and Statutory Information
2	Progress of the Administration
3	Pre-Administration Costs
4	Joint Administrators' Remuneration
5	Joint Administrators' Disbursements
3	Prescribed Part
7	Estimated Outcome for Creditors
3	Investigations
€	Exit from Administration
10	Creditors rights

Appendices

ļ	Statutory Information
II	Joint Administrators' Receipts and Payments Account
III	Time Analysis for period

IV Moorfields Charging and Disbursement Recovery Policy

Disclaimer:

This report has been prepared for the sole purpose of updating creditors for information purposes. The report is private and confidential and may not be relied upon, referred to, reproduced or quoted from, in whole or in part, by creditors for any purpose other than updating them for information purposes, or by any other person for any purpose whatsoever.

Palacecraig Street Coatbridge Limited - In Administration ("The Company")

1. Background and Statutory Information

This is the Joint Administrators' third progress report on the conduct of the administration from 18 August 2017 to 29 March 2018 in accordance with the requirements of Rule 2.38 of the Insolvency (Scotland) Rules 1986.

This report should be read in conjunction with the Joint Administrators' previous reports dated 9 November 2016, 2 May 2017 and 29 September 2017. There has been no major deviation from the strategy as proposed.

The Company entered administration on 30 September 2016 and Simon Thomas and Arron Kendall, both licensed insolvency practitioners of Moorfields Advisory Ltd, 88 Wood Street, London EC2V 7QF ("Moorfields"), were appointed Joint Administrators.

To date no fees have been drawn in respect of the Administration. Further information regarding fees is given in section 4 of this report.

Based on current information the prescribed part element of the floating charge will allow for a distribution to the unsecured creditors. I have explained the prescribed part element in more detail in section 6 of this report.

The Administration period has been extended to 29 September 2018 in order to deal with taxation matters, cross guarantee creditor claims and the distribution of the prescribed part.

Statutory information relating to the Company and the Joint Administrators' appointment is attached at **Appendix I**.

2 Progress of the Administration

The affairs, business and property of the Company are managed by the Joint Administrators who act as agents of the Company and contract without personal liability.

The Joint Administrators' receipts and payments account for the period 18 August 2018 to 29 March 2018 is attached at **Appendix II** together with a cumulative Receipts and Payments Account for the period 30 September 2016 to 29 March 2018.

The receipts and payments for the period covered by this report are considered to be self-explanatory.

2.1 Assets still to be realised

There are no assets remaining to be realised.

2.2 Sale of assets to a connected party

In accordance with Statement of Insolvency Practice 13 (SIP 13), the Joint Administrators confirm there have been no sales to connected parties in the period or in the two years preceding the Administration Order.

2.3 Joint Administrators' Expenses

The expenses paid by the Joint Administrators in the period of this report are reflected in the receipts and payments account at **Appendix II**, section 2.4 and section 5.

Summary of expenses			<u> </u>
Description	Paid to date	Estimated future £	Cumulative tota
Fixed charge costs	~	~	•
Legal Fees	(5,000.00)	-	(5,000.00)
Contribution to Legal Fees	(376.80)	-	(376.80
Agents/Valuers Fees	(10,650.00)	_	(10,650.00
Rent Apportionment	(31,929.35)	-	(31,929.35)
_	(47,956.15)	-	(47,956.15
Floating charge costs			
Preparation of Statement of Affairs	(1,750.00)	-	(1,750.00)
Office Holders' Cat 1 Disbursements	(862.59)	(500.00)	(1,362.59)
Agents/Valuers Fees	(945.00)	-	(945.00
Legal Fees	(500.00)	(1,500.00)	(2,000.00)
Legal Disbursements	(244.04)	(250.00)	(494.04)
Taxation fees	(3,000.00)	(1,000.00)	(4,000.00)
Insurance of Assets	(549.90)	-	(549.90)
	(7,851.53)	(3,250.00)	(11,101.53)
	(55,807.68)	(3,250.00)	(59,057.68)

I estimate future expenses excluding any tax liability and Administrators fees of £3,250.

2.4 <u>Professional Advisers</u>

The Joint Administrators have used the professional advisers listed below:

Pinsent Masons	Validity of appointment and ad hoc advice	fixed fee	500	500	-
Addleshaw Goddard LLP	Fees and disbursements relating to the sale of the Freehold	Fixed Fee and disbursements costs incurred	5,000	5,000	-
Gateley (Scotland) LLP	Legal disbursements – property searches	Fixed fee	244	244	•
Deloitte LLP	Preparation of Statement of Affairs	Time Charges	1,750	1,750	- -
Goodman Jones	Preparation and submission of VAT returns	Fixed Fee per Return	3,000	£3,000	-
Asbestos Building Surveyor	Asbestos report	Fixed fee	945	945	•
Colliers International Capital Markets LLP	Fees relating to marketing and sale of Freehold	Fixed commission on sale of 0.7% plus disbursements	10,650	10,650	-
Marsh	Insurance of assets	Variable	500	500	-
Moore Robinson Limited	Engineering inspection	Fixed fee	50	50	-

The Joint Administrators' choice was based upon their perception of the advisers' experience and ability to perform this type of work, the complexity and nature of the assignment and the basis of the fee arrangement with them. The Joint Administrators have reviewed the fees charged and are satisfied that they are reasonable in the circumstances of the case.

3. Pre-administration Costs

All pre-administration costs incurred have been written off.

4. Joint Administrators' Remuneration

The statutory provisions relating to remuneration are set out in Rule 2.39 of the Insolvency (Scotland) Rules 1986. Further information is given in the 'Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales' ("the ICAEW") publication 'A Creditors' Guide to Administrators' Remuneration Scotland', a copy of which may be accessed from the web site of the ICAEW at the link provided below or is available in hard copy upon written request to the Joint Administrators offices.

http://www.icaew.com/~/media/Files/Technical/Insolvency/creditors-guides/creditors-guide-to-administrators-remuneration-scotland-feb-10.pdf

In accordance with the Proposals, and pursuant to Rule 2.39 of the Rules, approval for remuneration is awaited from the secured creditor on the basis that the Joint Administrators' remuneration be fixed by reference to time properly spent by the Joint Administrators and their staff in attending to matters arising in the Administration.

The Joint Administrators are working to realise the assets subject to a fixed charge on behalf of the secured creditors and will receive a fee in respect of work undertaken.

Attached at **Appendix III** is a SIP 9 time and cost analysis which provides details of the activity costs incurred by staff grade by reference to time properly spent by the Joint Administrators in managing the Administration during this period. Time costs for the period 18 August 2017 to 29 March 2018 are £9,632.25. This represents 32.90 hours at an average hourly rate of £292.77 per hour

I also attach at **Appendix III** a cumulative time analysis for the period from 30 September 2016 to 29 March 2018 which provides details of my time costs to date.

Time costs to date have been incurred in respect of the following activities:

- Case strategy and reviews;
- · Statutory reporting to creditors;
- Dealing with all routine emails and correspondence;
- Updating the secured creditor in respect of the property position;
- Liaising with solicitors regarding the sale of the freehold;
- Liaising with agents regarding the marketing and sale of the freehold;
- Corresponding with HM Revenue & Customs and Accountants regarding the submission of post appointment VAT returns;
- Cashiering functions including third party payments and receipt of rental income.

It is the Joint Administrators' policy to delegate the routine administration tasks to less senior staff in order to maximise the cost effectiveness of the work performed. These staff are supervised by senior staff and the Joint Administrators. Any matter of complexity or significance is dealt with by the senior staff on team and the Joint Administrators.

Attached at **Appendix IV** is a schedule detailing the activities undertaken together with supporting information in accordance with the SIP 9. This also contains additional information in relation to this firm's policy on staffing, disbursements and details of our current charge-out rates by staff grade.

The Joint Administrators have drawn no fees to date.

5 Joint Administrators' Disbursements

In accordance with SIP 9, where expenses are incurred by Moorfields in respect of the insolvent estate they will be recharged. Such expenses can be divided into two categories.

5.1 Category 1 Disbursements

Separate charges are made in respect of directly attributable expenses (Category 1 disbursements) such as travelling, postage, photocopying (if external provider), statutory advertising and other expenses made on behalf of the assignment.

Such disbursements can be paid from the insolvent's assets without approval from the Creditors' Committee or the general body of creditors. In line with Statement of Insolvency Practice No. 9, it is our policy to disclose Category 1 disbursements drawn but not to seek approval for their payment. We are prepared to provide such additional information as may reasonably be required to support the disbursements drawn.

The Joint Administrators have not incurred any category 1 disbursements in the period.

5.2 <u>Category 2 Disbursements</u>

Category 2 disbursements do require approval from creditors. These disbursements can include costs incurred by Moorfields for the provision of services which include an element of recharged overhead, for example, room hire or document storage. Statement of Insolvency Practice No. 9 provides that such disbursements are subject to approval as if they were remuneration. It is our policy, in line with the Statement, to advise of any Category 2 disbursements before they are drawn.

Further details of our expenses policy are provided in Appendix 1V.

No category 2 disbursements have been drawn in this period. The sum of £50 has been incurred to date and will be paid subject to approval of category 2 disbursements.

6. Prescribed Part

Under the provisions of Section 176A of the Insolvency Act 1986 the Administrators must state the amount of funds available to unsecured creditors in respect of the prescribed part. This provision only applies where the company has granted a floating charge to a creditor after 15 September 2003.

A floating charge was granted in favour of The Co-operative Bank Plc on 18 December 2005 which was subsequently assigned to Promontoria (RAM 2) Limited ("the Secured Creditor"). The prescribed part provisions will therefore apply.

The Prescribed Part (section 176A of the Insolvency Act 1986 (Prescribed Part) Order 2003) applies where there are floating charge realisations, net of costs and preferential claims (the 'net property'), to be set aside for unsecured creditors. This equates to:

50% of net property up to £10,000

Plus, 20% of net property in excess of £10,000

Up to a maximum of £600,000

The Company's net property is the amount of its property subject to any floating charges created by the Company after allowing for costs and claims of preferential creditors.

Based on current indications the net property of the Company, after allowing for costs incurred to date, is estimated to be £346,936 and the prescribed part of the net property available to unsecured creditors is estimated at £72,387. However, the estimate has not been verified and does not take into account future costs of the Administration which will reduce the amount of the Company's net property.

Please note that the net property and prescribed part calculation can only be estimated at this stage. The value of any prescribed part may be subject to change once creditor claims and the Joint Administrators' costs and expenses have been finalised.

At this time, the Joint Administrators do not intend to make an application to the court under section 176A(5) of the Insolvency Act 1986 for an Order not to distribute the prescribed part.

7. Estimated outcome for creditors

7.1 <u>Secured Creditors</u>

The following charges are registered against the Company;

Charge Holder	Date Created	Туре
Co-Operative Bank Plc	18/2/2005	Charge over Rental Income Account
Co-Operative Bank Plc	18/2/2005	Floating Charge
Co-Operative Bank Plc	22/12/2005	Fixed Charge. Interest in west side Palacecraig Street, Coatbridge.
AWG Property Ltd	22/2/2013	Fixed Charge. Interest in west side Palacecraig Street, Coatbridge.
Co-Operative Bank Plc	22/8/2013	Fixed Charge. Interest in west side Palacecraig Street, Coatbridge.

The charges Registered in favour of Co-Operative Bank Plc have been assigned to the Secured Creditor. The balance due to the Secured Creditor as per the Statement of Affairs was £2,325,693.

£1,383,131.40 has been distributed to the secured creditor in respect of the realsations subject to their fixed charege. In addition £240,000.00 has been distributed to the secured creditor in respect of realsations subject to their floating charge.

The Secured Creditor is expected to suffer a shortfall and it is therefore considered unlikely that there will be sufficient fixed charge realisations to make any payment to AWG Property Ltd in respect of their charge.

7.2 Preferential Creditors

There are no known preferential creditors

7.3 Unsecured Creditors

The Joint Administrators' have received one claim for £111,806.85 to date. I have yet to receive claims from six creditors whose debts total £617,972.82 as per the Directors' Statement of Affairs.

No defined calculation of creditors' claims has been undertaken. Based on current information and in accordance with information available at the time of the Joint Administrators' proposals, the Joint Administrators' anticipate there being sufficient funds to enable a distribution to the unsecured creditors of the Company by virtue of the prescribed part.

8. Investigations

In accordance with the Company Directors Disqualification Act 1986 I would confirm that I have submitted a report on the conduct of the Directors of the Company to the Department for Business Innovation & Skills. As this is a confidential report, I am not able to disclose the contents.

To complete this report a review of the Company's financial accounts, bank statements and directors' questionnaires was undertaken regarding the period leading up to the Administration to ascertain whether or not there had been any misconduct by the director in the form of any preference payments, transactions at an undervalue or wrongful trading.

If creditors wish to bring any matters they believe to be relevant to the attention of the Joint Administrators, they are invited to do so in writing to Simon Thomas and Arron Kendall at Moorfields, 88 Wood Street, London EC2V 7QF.

9. Exit from Administration

As outlined in the initial report to creditors it is the Joint Administrators' intention to exit the Administration into Creditors Voluntary Liquidation should there be funds available to enable a distribution to the unsecured creditors other than by way of the prescribed part or by way of dissolution should there be no funds available to distribute.

The Joint Administrators will seek to be discharged from liability under Paragraph 98(3) of Schedule B1 to the Insolvency Act 1986 immediately upon their appointment as Joint Administrators ceasing to have effect.

10. Creditors Rights

Any secured creditor, or an unsecured creditor (with the concurrence of at least 25% in value of the unsecured creditors) may within 8 weeks of receipt of this progress report make an application to court on the grounds that the basis fixed for the Joint Administrators' remuneration, the remuneration charged or the expenses incurred by the Joint Administrators as set out in the progress report are excessive. (Rule 2.39A)

If you have any queries regarding this report please contact Ben Luxford of this office in the first instance. I will report to you again at the conclusion of the Administration or in six months' time, whichever is the sooner.

For and on behalf of Palacecraig Street Coatbridge Limited

S R Thomas Joint Administrator

DDI 0207 186 1163 Fax 0207 186 1177

Email <u>ben.luxford@moorfieldscr.com</u>

Simon Thomas and Arron Kendall of Moorfields, 88 Wood Street, London, EC2V 7QF were appointed Joint Administrators on 30 September, 2016. The Administrators now manage the affairs, business and property of the Company. The Joint Administrators act as agents only and without personal liability.

Statutory Information

Company Information

Company Number:

SC286972

Registered Office:

c/o Moorfields, 01 Rose Street South Lane, Edinburgh, EH2 3JG

Trading Address:

Palacecraig Street, Coatbridge, Glasgow, ML5 4TF

Principal Activity:

Buying and selling of real estate

Appointment details

Joint Administrators:

Simon Thomas and Arron Kendall (IP numbers: 8920 & 16050)

Joint Administrators'

address:

Moorfields, 88 Wood Street, London, EC2V 7QF

Date of appointment:

30 September, 2016

Court:

N/A – Qualifying Floating Charge Holder appointment

Court Reference:

N/A - Qualifying Floating Charge Holder appointment

Appointed by:

Promontoria (RAM 2) Limited

Functions:

Any act required or authorised under any enactment to be done by an Administrator may be done by either or both of the Joint Administrators'

acting jointly or alone.

EC Regulations:

The Company's registered office is from where the Company carries on its business. Therefore, in the absence of proof to the contrary, the Company's centre of main interests is in the United Kingdom and as such these proceedings will be the main proceedings as defined in article 3 of the EC

regulation.

Extensions:

The Secured Creditor approved an extension of the Administration until 29

September 2018.

Appendix II

Receipts and payments account

PALACECRAIG STREET COATBRIDGE LIMITED (In Administration) Joint Administrators' Summary of Receipts & Payments						
Statement of Affairs £		From 30/09/2016 To 17/08/2017	From 18/08/2017 To 29/03/2018 £	Cumulative Tota		
			-			
1,500,000	FIXED CHARGE ASSETS Freehold Land & Property Bank Interest	1,450,000.00	- 6.66	1,450,000.0 6.6		
		1,450,000.00	6.66	1,450,006.6		
	COSTS OF REALISATION					
	Legal Fees	(5,000.00)	_	(5,000.0		
	Contribution to Legal Fees	(376.80)	_	(376.8		
	Agents/Valuers Fees	(373.00)	(10,650.00)	(10,650.0		
	Rent Apportionment	(31,929.35)	(10,000.00)	(31,929.3		
	Tent Apportionment	(37,306.15)	(10,650.00)	(47,956.1		
		(07,000.10)	(10,000.00)	(47,000.1		
	SECURED CREDITOR					
	Fixed Charge Creditor	(1,383,131.40	-	(1,383,131.		
		(1,383,131.40	-	(1,383,131.		
	FLOATING QUADOF ASSETS					
478 532	FLOATING CHARGE ASSETS	177 206 00		177 206		
178,532	Cash at Bank Rent	177,206.99	•	177,206.9		
	Bank Interest Gross	187,500.00	46.24	187,500.		
	Dank interest Gloss	<u>34.51</u> 364,741.50	<u>46.34</u> 46.34	80.: 364,787.		
		554,741.55	40.04	004,707.		
	COSTS OF REALISATIONS					
	Preparation of Statement of Affairs	(1,750.00)	-	(1,750.0		
	Office Holders' Cat 1 Disbursements	-	(862.59)	(862.5		
	Agents/Valuers Fees	(945.00)	-	(945.0		
	Legal Fees	(500.00)	-	(500.0		
	Legal Disbursements	-	(244.04)	(244.0		
	Taxation fees	(750.00)	(2,250.00)	(3,000.0		
	Insurance of Assets	(500.00)	(49.90)	(549.9		
		(4,445.00)	(3,406.53)	(7,851.5		
	FLOATING CHARGE CREDITORS					
	Floating Charge Creditorr	(240,000.00)	_	(240,000.0		
	r loaking charge crossion	(240,000.00)		(240,000.0		
1,678 <u>,532</u>		149,858.95	(14,003.53)	135,855.4		
	REPRESENTED BY					
	VAT Receivable			639.0		
	Interest Bearing Fixed Charge Accoun	nt		17,843.		
	Interest Bearing Floating Charge Acc			105,009.6		
	Fixed Charge VAT Receivable	-		1,075.3		
	VAT Control Account			11,287.6		
				135,855.4		

Appendix III

Time cost analysis

PALA001 - Palacecraig Street Coalbridge Limited From: 18/06/2017 To: 29/03/2018 Project Code: POST

Classification of Work Function	Parlage	Moreger	Other Senior Professionals	Assistants & Support Staff	Total Flours	Time Goet (E)	Average Hearly Rate (5)
10 : Case Planning	20.0	0.00	0.20	2.00	9.20	20.00	300.00
14 : Statutory Reporting	2.50	0.70	9.80	0.00	12.00	4,107.00	320.86
15 : Case Monitoring	0.00	0.50	1.10	0.00	1.80	505.50	315.94
17 : General Administration	0.00	0.90	1,40	0.00	2.30	721.50	313.70
18 : Conhiering	0.50	0.00	3.80	3.90	8.20	1,999.00	243.78
70 : Post appoint VAT and CT returns	6.00	0.20	3.10	0.00	3.30	929.00	281.52
Admin & Planning	1.00	2.99	11.20	130	29.49	£322.00	293.65
30 : Freehold / Lamehold Property	0.00	0.70	0.10	0.00	9.80	278.50	348.13
36 : Identifying, Securing, Insuring	0.00	0.00	0.50	0.00	9.50	127.50	255.00
Asset Finalization	ł.00	6.79	6,80	t.m	1.30	46.66	312.31
72 : Lagai Hatlers	0.00	0.00	0.5 0	0.00	0.50	127.50	255.00
Cane Specific Matters	£.00	0.00	0.56	£16	1.50	127.50	295.80
50 : Creditor Correspondence	0.00	0.00	0.50	0.00	0.50	127.50	256.00
63 : Secured creditor reports	0.00	0.00	0.85	0.00	0.85	255.00	300.90
Creditors	4.86	8.60	1.35	L#	1.35	342.58	20.33
22 : Artecedant Transactions	0.00	0.90	0.85	0.00	1,35	394.25	292.04
Investigations	1.00	1.59	0.85	1.01	1.36	301.25	282.04
Total Hours	3.00	3.50	22.9	1.00	32.94	1,632.25	292.77
Total Fees Claimed						0.04	

PALA001 - Palacecraig Street Coetbridge Limited From: 30/09/2016 To: 29/03/2018 Project Code: POST

Chanification of Work Function	Pertuin	Manager	Other Senior Professionals	Assistante & Support Staff	Total Hours	Time Cost (C)	Arrange Hearty Rate (E)
10 : Case Planning	9.80	0.50	2.90	0.00	13.4	5,861,50	437.30
11 : Administration Set Up	9.00	0.00	0.40	0.00	0.00	162.80	265.00
12 : Appointment Notification	£.00	0.00	1.10	₩.00	1.10	264.50	233,16
14 : Statutery Reporting	2.50	2.10	27.10	8.00	32.53	1,000.26	279.00
15 : Case Michig	0.00	7.80	3.30	1.20	12.30	3,959.86	321.07
16 : IPS Case Set Lip	9.80	0.00	0.10	0.00	€.10	22.50	225.00
17 : General Administration	0.80	8.90	1.75	2.10	11. Љ	2,657.25	261.00
18 : Cashining	1.80	1.10	6.36	10.80	20.16	4,804.50	242.84
70 : Peet appoint VAT and CT returns	<u>0.00</u>	0.00	9.60		16.40	2,50)1.50	278.86
Admin & Planning	13.39	13.29	PLAE	14.30	142.16	39,225.30	383.91
50 : Freehold / Lessonight Property	2.50	31.50	21.40	6.00	55.40	10,100.50	334.07
36 : Khellijing, Securing, Innaing	8.00	0.00	1.70	9.00	1,70	412.50	242.86
77 : Managing Agent	1.00	0.00	10.46	9.00	11.40	3,234.00	283.66
Asset Resiliation	3.60	31.56	11.00	1.00	M.19	21,786.00	217.80
72 : Legal Mellers	3.00	6.00	9.50	00.0	12.50	4,000.50	227.24
Case Specific Malters	110	Les	1.9	1.00	12.00	4,004.00	227.24
			A==				
50 : Creditor Correspondence	4.80	0.00	0.70	0.00	9.70	172.80	34L43
51 : Unaccord creditor chairs.	0.80	8.00	0.50	9.00	9.00	213.50	27 0.68
63 : Secured creditor reports	9.00	146	16.85	9.00	14.85	4,480.00	267.95
Creditors	£30	1.41	16.48	LM	18.44	4,01E.00	26.00
66 : Director's Communications	8.30	0.00	1.50	2.00	1.00	S41,50	300.83
20 : SIP2 Pining	0.50	1.00	0.00	0.00	1.50	#7.5a	445.00
21 : CDOA Recorts	9.00	0.80	3.20	0.00	4.10	1,125.59	274.51
22 : Anincedont Transactions	0.50	2.56	19	0.00	12.05	3,234.52	206.70
Investigations	1.39	439	il.h	4.00	19.46	LJP1.82	201.50
45 - Negotiating with Suppliers	0.00	0.00	6.20	0.00	0.20	45.00	225.00
Tracking	4.84	1.00	6.28	9,60	120	41.00	225.06
Total Hours	21.99	4.6	136.91	14.26	221.26	86,462.82	390.12
Total Fore Claimed						6.00	

1. Explanation of office-holders charging and disbursement recovery policies

In accordance with best practice we provide below details of policies of Moorfields, in respect of fees and disbursements for work in relation to insolvency estates.

This summary outlines the activities undertaken during this matter to date together with details of charge out rates for time costs incurred and the basis of disbursements incurred and recharged.

The activities are summarised as follows:

1.1. Administration and planning

The following activities have been undertaken:

- Statutory duties associated with the appointment including the filing of relevant notices;
- Notification of the appointment to creditors, members, employees and other interested parties;
- · Setting up of case files
- · Reviewing available information to determine the appropriate strategy;
- · Setting up and maintaining bank accounts;
- Implementing the strategy for the Administration;
- 6 monthly progress review of the case;
- Completion of statutory returns to the Insolvency Compliance Unit of the Department for Business Innovation and Skills

Staff of different levels were involved in the above activities depending upon the experience required.

1.2. Realisation of assets

Appendix II shows the realisations made for the benefit of the creditors. In this case the assets belonging to the Company were as follows;

- Palacecraig Street, Coatbridge Property;
- Cash at Bank;
- Rent.

The time spent includes the following matters:

- · Liaising with Tenant;
- · Corresponding with agents in relation to valuation and realisation of assets.

1.3. Creditors

The time spent includes the following matters:

Recording and maintaining the list of creditors;

- Recording creditor claims;
- Dealing with specific creditor calls and correspondence;
- Reporting to creditors;
- Dealing with creditor queries.

1.4. <u>Investigations and communications</u>

The time spent includes the following matters:

- · Corresponding with Company directors for purposes of conduct report;
- Issuing questionnaires and requests for Statement of Affairs;
- Reviewing Company records and questionnaires and preparing the statutory return in accordance with the requirements of the Department for Business Innovation and Skills.

2. Time recording

The Partners will engage managers and other staff to work on the insolvent estate and statutory compliance diaries. The work required is delegated to the most appropriate level of staff taking account of the nature of the work and the individual's experience. Additional assistance is provided by accounting and treasury executives dealing with the estate's bank accounts. Work carried out by all staff is subject to the overall supervision of the Partners.

All time spent by staff working directly on case related matters is charged to a time code established for the case. Each member of staff has a specific hourly rate, which is subject to change over time.

The current charge out rates per hour of staff within the firm who may be involved in working on the insolvency follows, this in no way implies that staff at all such grades will work on the case:

GRADE	£
Partner	545
Director/ Senior Manager	450
Manager	380
Assistant Manager	300
Senior Associate	255
Associate	225
Cashier/ Support	195

The rates charged by Moorfields are reviewed periodically in January & July each year and are adjusted to take account of inflation and the firm's overheads.

Our rates increased on 1 February 2018. The charge out rates per hour for the period from 1 January 2017 to 31 January 2018 were:

GRADE	£
Partner	530
Director/ Senior Manager	450

Manager	355
Assistant Manager	300
Senior Administrator	255
Administrator	225
Cashier/ Support	195

Time spent on casework is recorded directly to the relevant case using a computerised time recording system and the nature of the work undertaken is recorded at that time in units of 6 minutes.

Where an officeholder's remuneration is approved on a time cost basis the time invoiced to the case will be subject to VAT at the prevailing rate.

Where remuneration has been approved on a time cost basis the time invoiced will be provided to any committee appointed by the creditors or in the absence of a committee to the creditors, the report will provide a breakdown of the remuneration drawn and will enable the recipients to see the average rates of such costs. The current hourly rates may be higher than the average rates, if hourly rates have increased over the period covered by the fee request.

Approved remuneration will be drawn at such times that sufficient funds are available.

For your information, A Creditor's Guide to Administrators' Fees can be obtained at http://www.insolvency-practitioners.org.uk/uploads/Admin.pdf

3. Disbursement recovery

Category 1 Disbursements

Separate charges are made in respect of directly attributable expenses (Category 1 disbursements) such as travelling, postage, photocopying if external provider, statutory advertising and other expenses made on behalf of the assignment.

Such disbursements can be paid from the insolvent's assets without approval from the Creditors' Committee or the general body of creditors. In line with Statement of Insolvency Practice No. 9, it is our policy to disclose Category 1 disbursements drawn but not to seek approval for their payment. We are prepared to provide such additional information as may reasonably be required to support the disbursements drawn.

Category 2 Disbursements

Category 2 disbursements do require approval from creditors. These disbursements can include costs incurred by Moorfields for the provision of services which include an element of recharged overhead, for example, room hire or document storage. Statement of Insolvency Practice No. 9 provides that such disbursements are subject to approval as if they were remuneration. It is our policy, in line with the Statement, to seek approval for Category 2 disbursements before they are drawn.

The following Category 2 disbursements may be charged by this firm

- Stationery and postage charge for sending out circulars 5 pence per sheet plus postage at cost.
- A set-up charge of £50 per case for online creditor reporting where applicable
- Mileage allowances are paid at HM Revenue & Customs approved rates. For personnel using their own vehicles, these are currently 45 pence per mile for the first 10,000 miles and 25 pence per mile thereafter.
- o A charge of £100 for FAME investigation searches

It should be noted that disbursements costs might increase from time to time, however, increases would only be in line with inflation or increases from our supplier.